Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (pre-1965)

1962

Melvin Bradshaw v. J. G. Miller et al : Brief of Plaintiff and Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This matter comes before the above entitled court on a motion for summary judgment of the defendants which was granted by the District Court of Beaver County, Itah. The matter was placed in the District Court of Beaver County, Utah, by the plaintiff, Melvin Bradshaw, claiming ownership to three mining claims, to-wit, Sandnan Placer Claim, Sandman No. 1 Placer Claim, and Sandman No. 2, Placer Claim, by virtue of location notices lated 28 April, 1956, and filed with the Beaver County Recorder on 1 May, 1956, and the performance of assessment work thereafter. Thereafter, on the 1st day of Sep-

tember, 1961, and on the 25th day of September, 1961, with actual knowledge of the claim of the plaintiff, the defendant J. G. Miller having been told of the deposit by the plaintiff, Melvin Bradshaw, having been shown the deposit by associates of the plaintiff, Melvin Bradshaw, and having checked the Recorder's Office to see whether or not a recording for assessment work for the year ending 1 September, 1961, had been made, top-filed a large portion of the area covered by the plaintiff's claims by two 20-acre claims known as Star and Star No. 1 Placer Mining Claims. Thereafter, the defendant J. G. Miller allowed the defendant, Beaver City Corporation and the defendant Beaver County, Utah, to remove products therefrom. That at the time said products were removed. each of said defendants know of the claim of the plaintiff to said property. Whereupon, the plaintiff brought an action against the defendants J. G. Miller and Beaver City Corporation for the products removed by Beaver City Corporation, and against the defendants J. G. Miller and Beaver County for the products removed by Beaver County, asking triple damages for same. Thereafter, the defendants Beaver City Corporation and Beaver County, Utah, filed an answer denying allegations of the plaintiff, and the defendant J. G. Miller filed an answer denying allegations and cross-complaining against the plaintiff for products removed from the claims of the defendant J. G. Miller and asking for title to be quieted. Thereafter the matter came before the trial court on motion for summary judgment propounded by the defendants, and on a motion to join additional parties propounded by the plaintiff. Thereafter, the trial court issued a memorandum decision granting the defendants' motion for summary judgment, which contained the following phrase, "Under these circumstances, the court is unable to determine within an area several miles square where such locations have been made, and must hold all three of the notices of location to be absolutely void." That said quotation purports to be the court's finding in relation to the plaintiff's three claims.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

Point I

The memorandum of decision is in error in declaring laims of plaintiff void in that the reason is that "the court is unable to determine within an area several miles quare where such locations have been made," and this s not a proper reason without an attempt to locate same in the ground, and is improper on motion of summary udgment.

Point II

The trial court did not properly resolve issues on motion for summary judgment.

Point III

Order and judgment based thereon should be vacated, and the matter remanded for trial on merits.

ARGUMENT

Point I

THE MEMORANDUM DECISION IS IN ERROR IN DECLARING CLAIMS OF PLAINTIFF VOID IN THAT THE REASON IS THAT "THE COURT IS UNABLE TO DETERMINE WITHIN AN AREA SEVERAL MILES SQUARE WHERE SUCH LOCATIONS HAVE BEEN MADE," AND THIS IS NOT A PROPER REASON WITHOUT AN ATTEMPT TO LOCATE SAME ON THE GROUND, AND IS IMPROPER ON MOTION OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

The recording of the Sandman claim which was included in the affidavit of counsel in support of summary judgment recites "about 5 miles westerly from Manderfield and northwesterly from Black Mountain connecting onto Claim No. 1 on the north side Range 8, Township 29,504 containing 40 acres." The recording on Sandman Claim No. 1 recites, "about ten miles Westerly from Manderfield and West of Black Mountain, Range 8 West, Township 29 containing 40 acres." The recording on Sandman Claim No. 2 recites. "about five miles Westerly from Manderfield and Northwesterly of Black Mountain, connects on to Claim No. 1 on North Side and East Side, Range 8 West, Township 29 containing 40 acres." There is an error in recording pertaining to Sandman Claim No. 1 which the undersigned was not aware of at the time of the motion for summary judgment. The original of the placer location recites, "about Five Miles Westerly from Manderfield and West of Black Mountain, Range 8 West, Township 297 containing 40 acres." The only error of which the undersigned is aware in the recording is the reference to Black Mountain was five miles rather than ten miles as the recording shows.

The affidavit of Sam Cline in support of summary judgment acknowledged being an expert on land in Bea'er County, Utah, and recites that "any lands located ither five or ten miles Westerly from the "Manderfield" nentioned in exhibits 1, 2 and 3, are located in Townhip 28 South, Range 8 West, Salt Lake Meridian, and are not and cannot be located in any other township than Cownship 28 South, Salt Lake Meridian." This item in tself shows, definitely that any reference to any township 29 is an error on the part of the locators on the Sandnan claims, inasmuch as there is no possibility of it beng Northwest of Black Mountain and Manderfield in Beaver County, Utah, and being in 29 South, Bearing in mind that the location notices of the plaintiff do not contain some of the niceties of description that might be desirable, this cannot be considered at this time, inasmuch as the trial court based its memorandum decision upon a finding that the court was unable to determine within an area of several miles square where such locations have been made, and must hold all three of the location notices to be absolutely void. It appears that the reason for holding these notices void is that the general area is not satisfactory to the trial court, and not because of any failure of an uneducated locator, who is not an attorney or an engineer, to describe boundaries. It is rather interesting that the location notices of J. G. Miller as to the Star Claim and Star No. 1, which were obviously prepared by either an attorney or an engineer. also tie to Black Mountain; also are in Range 8 West, Township 28 South, and in Section 3 thereof.

The courts have long recognized that at various times in the field, prospectors and miners might make mistakes, and as such have attempted to ask them only to identify their claims on the ground. Also, Section 40-1-2, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, makes specific provision to tie these items to natural objects, in subdivision 5 of said title:

"If a placer or mill site claim, the number of acres or superficial feet claimed, and such a description

of the claim or mill site, located by reference to some natural object or permanent monument, as will identify the claim or mill site."

In the case of Fuller vs. Mountain Sculpture, 6 Utah 2, 385, 314 Pac. 2, 842, there is no question that the location notices therein are not set down with any more particularity than are the location notices of plaintiff in the case before the above entitled court. Our image in that case, decided by the Supreme Court of the State of Utah, is "80 acres in area consisting of two contiguous 40-acre tracts covering the south slope and face of a hillside, and other area, prominently visible from Park Valley by reason of the Turquoise colored rock visibly exposed thereon. Entire area is coverel with said stone." In addition there is an attempt to locate same in relation to a monument. This again was a person without benefit of engineering or legal talent setting forth his findings. The Supreme Court of Utah upheld this location as against a later locator, with the following comment:

"It is further to be observed that the defendants, through their conversation with Glen E. Fuller and their observations of the notices and monuments in Rock Canyon, had actual notice that the plaintiffs claimed the area in dispute. Therefore, even if there had been deficiencies of a technical nature in plaintiffs' location, that furnishes no succor to defendants in attempting to establish their claim. It is well settled that minor defects in the notices, descriptions, or procedure will not defeat the location of a prior claimant at the instance of one having actual notice."

In relation to the description in the Fuller vs. Mountain Sculpture case, the words "80 acres in area consisting of two contiguous 40-acre tracts covering the south slope and face of a hillside prominently visible from Park Valley by reason of the Turquoise colored rock visibly exposed thereon * * * " were upheld by the Su-

reme Court of the State of Utah. Certainly this is not as lefinite language as the description in the plaintiff's noices, to-wit: "About five miles Westerly from Manderield and Northwesterly from Black Mountain." These points, of course, are acknowledged by counsel in his iffidavit to be ascertainable points in Beaver County, Jtah, and have been used by the defendants J. G. Miller n tying his own claims thereto.

As pertaining to the use of the figure "29" rather than 28 in the description by the plaintiff, there is no question that it is a mistake, and there is no question that anyone that is acquainted with the territory would realize immediately upon seeing same that it was a mistake. There is no question that the defendant J. G. Miller acknowledged same as a mistake, inasmuch as he waited until he thought a period of assessment work had run out and thought he was locating claims on which assessment work had not been done.

In the case of Cranford vs. Gibbs, 123 Utah 447, 260 Pac. 2, 870, it was held:

"Neither niceties of description in original notice of mining claim location, nor more than reasonable accuracy in staking of claims is required to effectuate a valid claim location."

In this case, Gibbs made several locations in 1949, locating a group of claims known as the Yellow Canaries. The claims were generally tied in with each other, and were described generally as being two miles northeast of Marysvale, Utah, along Old County Highway. In May of 1950, Crapford made some locations that conflicted. Later in 1950, survey showed that the claims of Gibbs were actually several miles from the general description. The trial court held that although the general descriptions in the Yellow Canary claims as originally filed were erroneous when later corrected by survey, which is

the usual procedure, an amendment should be allowed to take care of same, and that the claims should be allowed from the date of the location. Certainly, the case at bar is such that at least there should be a hearing on same rather than a summary judgment that said claims are void, in view of the actual knowledge of J. G. Miller in connection with such matter.

The principle of what is sufficient notice is set forth in Section 219 of 40 Corpus Juris, Mines & Minerals, simply as to that which will give notice on the ground, and states "and immaterial or clerical errors or mistakes may be corrected or disregarded, particularly as to persons having actual notice of the location and boundaries of the claim, or who are estopped to complaint of the defects." Also, in the revision, 58 Corpus Juris Secundum, Mines & Minerals, Section 123, there is no material change in this item.

It is also most interesting to note that there are many jurisdictions that hold that a subsequent locator with actual knowledge cannot rely on inaccuracies or technical defects of the previous locator's claim. This is found in Bismark Mountain Gold Mining Co. vs. North Sunbeam Gold Co. 14 Idaho 516, 95 Pacific 14; also in the case of Heilman vs. Loughran, 57 Montana 380, 188 Pacific 370. It is very interesting to note that the respondent J. G. Miller, who is the beneficiary of the summary judgment complained of by the plaintiff and appellant, Melvin Bradshaw, is in the unique position of having actual knowledge of the plaintiff's claims and complaining of them on technical questions.

Point II

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT PROPERLY RESOLVE ISSUES ON MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

In the case of Johnson vs. Syme, 6 Utah 2, 319, 313 Pa-

ific 2, 468, in dissenting opinion, the requirements of ummary judgment have been set forth:

"A summary judgment is proper only if the pleadings, depositions and admissions show that there is no genuine issue of material facts and that the moving party is entitled to such a judgment as a matter of law."

This is, of course, quoting a portion of Rule 56C of Jtah Rules of Civil Procedure. On a summary judgment, he questions must be viewed most strongly against the noving party. In the case at bar, we have a moving party or summary judgment who has actual knowledge of location on the ground, requesting a summary judgment based upon technical deficiencies alleged to be in a location notice. Certainly, on an item of this nature, the evidence should be heard, and it should not be handled in a summary matter.

Point III

ORDER AND JUDGMENT BASED THEREON SHOULD BE VACATED, AND THE MATTER REMANDED FOR TRIAL ON MERITS.

In a matter of this nature, there can be no question but that a summary judgment is improper, inasmuch as summary judgment is based on an opinion that taking the location notices alone it cannot be told what area the locations are in, and the Supreme Court has ruled specifically that this in and of itself is not a disqualification. Also, where we have a later locator with actual knowledge of the prior claims of the plaintiff attempting to obtain a summary judgment on technical questions peraining to location notice rather than actual knowledge, and intent of the later locator at the time the locations were made, it becomes quite clear that this matter should be heard. Under these circumstances, it seems proper that

the matter should be remanded back to the District Court for hearing, and that the summary judgment and items in connection therewith should be vacated.

Respectfully submitted,

PATRICK H. FENTON Attorney for Plaintiff and Appellant