1962

Melvin Bradshaw v. J. G. Miller et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

PLAINTIFF'S NOTICES OF LOCATION ARE FATALLY DEFECTIVE

Appellant's Point No. 1 states "*the memorandum of decision*" is in error in declaring claims of plaintiff void. * * * * The trial court did prepare and file a written memorandum of decision, but this memorandum is not properly before this court. The designation of record prepared by appellant (Tr.) does not include such memorandum. However, if we consider point No. 1 directed against the order on motion of defendants for

summary judgment, then appellant fails to designate why or in what manner the making of such order is "improper on motion of summary judgment," as stated by plaintiff in his brief.

Actually the issue that was before this Honorable Court is as stated in the trial court's order on the motion for summary judgment (Tr. 48) as follows:

"Does the plaintiff have the ownership and right of possession of the placer claims by reason of having made valid locations thereof."

In the order granting the motion for summary judgment the trial court made this statement which directs attention to the problem involved:

"Substantially, the action in its commencement, involves the validity of the placer mining locations claimed by plaintiff, and if such notices of location are void then plaintiff does not have perfected locations and nothing can be claimed thereunder."

In the order granting respondents' motion for summary judgment the trial court found as follows (Tr. 48):

"The location notices, as recorded in the office of the County Recorder of Beaver County, Utah, set forth that the claims are located in the Granite Mining District of Beaver County, Utah, and presumably in Township 29 South, Range 8 West (no mention is made in the notices of location as to the Base and Meridian). Each claim is for forty acres without any specification as to shape or boundary

lines, and with no reference to any specific section. Two of the claims are stated to be located about 5 miles westerly from Manderfield and northwesterly from Black Mountain, the other claim is stated to be located about ten miles westerly from Manderfield and west of Black Mountain, yet all are stated to join each other in one group. *There is no identification shown by monuments on the ground.*' (Italics ours).

Then the court made the statement: "The Court is unable, under these circumstances to determine within an area several miles square where such locations have been made." (Tr. 48).

The uncontroverted supporting affidavit shows that any lands located either five miles or ten miles westerly from the Manderfield mentioned in plaintiff's notices of location, are located in Township 28 South, Range 8 West, Salt Lake Meridian, and are not and cannot be located in any other township than Township 28 South.

It will be observed that the only reference whatsoever in plaintiff's notices of location as to actual location of the placer claims, in order to identify them, is a statement that they are located about five and ten miles, respectively, from Manderfield and northwesterly from Black Mountain.

It goes without saying that such a reference, and particularly the difference between five and ten miles, covers a huge area of territory.

Each of the notices, as recorded, refer only to Range 8, Township 29. No mention is made of the meridian. No mention is made of whether the range is east or west, or the township north or south. In all fairness we concede that it can properly be held the reference to Granite Mining District of Beaver County, Utah, would put any person on notice that Range 8 would of necessity be west, and Township 29 south of Salt Lake Meridian. However, any specific township and range includes thirty-six sections of 620 acres in each section, or a total of 22,320 acres, which, to say the least, permits a locator a latitude of a very, very considerable acreage in which at a later date to attempt to validate his claims. A person referring to the plaintiff's notices of location, in order to determine what ground was intended and covered thereby, would be required to scout out and inspect over twenty-two thousand acres of land in Township 29, or if he had any reason to believe this was an erroneous township description, he would be required to scout out and inspect over twenty-two thousand acres of land in the adjoining township on the north,- and a similar acreage of adjoining land on the south. Even though a specific section of land was mentioned in the location notices, with a *correct* township and range, a subsequent locator would be required to cruise over six hundred and forty acres to determine what particular forty acres was claimed under the plaintiff's location. Without some legal subdivision of a section being set forth in the location notice, such de-

scription is indefinite, there being sixteen forty-acre tracts in each section. To sufficiently identify a placer claim the legal subdivision should be specified, or at least some attempt should be made to specify the location of the discovery monument and some indication should appear as to whether the forty acres is in a square area, or a rectangular area, in order to provide notice to the world of the location of a claim.

One of the very important necessities for monumenting a claim by corner and/or end stakes, is to prevent a locator at a later date from "floating" his lines and boundaries. In the case at bar the record does not show, either by notices of location, or by plaintiff's complaint, or affidavits, or in any other manner, that plaintiff did comply with *Section 40-1-3, U.C.A. 1953*, which provides:

"Mining claims and mill sites *must* be *distinctly* marked on the ground so that the boundaries thereof can be readily traced."

The trial court found in its order granting the motion for summary judgment (Tr. 48) *that there is no identification shown by monuments on the ground*. Failure to comply with the foregoing section prevents the perfection of a mining location, whether lode or placer, even though the notice of location is sufficient. No complaint is made by appellant to the court's finding above quoted, and it must be conclusively presumed to be correct.

Location notice of Sand Man claim states it is

located about *five* miles westerly from Manderfield and northwesterly from Black Mountain, *connecting onto Claim No. 1 on the north side*. Location notice of Sand Man No. 1 states it is located about *ten* miles westerly from Manderfield and west of Black Mountain. It would be impossible from any notice imparted by the location notices of plaintiff to know whether these claims are located five or ten miles westerly from Manderfield or northwesterly from Black Mountain.

A correct manner of locating a placer claim—in fact the statutory and necessary manner, is to describe the ground by subdivisions. (*See U.S.C.A. Title 30, Sec. 35*). By so doing, the lines and boundaries cannot be “floated” and cannot be changed, excepting in some proper instances, by proper amended location notice. And most certainly, if not designated by legal subdivision, the ground should be staked and the notice of location should contain a metes and bounds description, to show the exterior boundaries. Defendant Miller’s notices of location (Tr. 22-44) show that the claims he located, and which plaintiff now contends conflict with and invade plaintiff’s claims, are located in $N\frac{1}{2}NE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of Sec. 10; and $S\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}SE\frac{1}{4}$ of Sec. 3, Township 28 South, Range 8 West, S.L.M. This location places the claims at least six, and perhaps twelve miles northerly from the plaintiff’s locations in Township 29 South, depending on whether plaintiff’s locations in Township 29 South are in the northerly or southerly portion thereof. With no section

number designated in plaintiff's notices, no one can determine what ground is claimed by him.

It might be sufficient to locate a placer claim by reference to some natural object or permanent monument as will identify it, by referring to a number of miles from Manderfield and from Black Mountain, providing some additional information is given concerning the location, either by reference to a legal subdivision of a section, township and range, or by a tie to a patented claim, or by reference to a discovery monument, and showing the boundaries by reference to corner and/or end stakes. But respondents contend that a reference to an object alone, the location of which could extend over a distance of many miles, is not sufficient. It cannot be presumed that a prospective locator could know whether "Manderfield" refers to a village or town, or some locality many miles in any given direction, or whether "Black Mountain" is a mountain ten or twenty miles in length, and whether the five (or ten miles) referred to in plaintiff's notices commenced from the north, south, east or west portion of the so-called natural objects.

Respondents are fully aware of the fact that courts have long held a punctilious compliance with the exact letter of the law is not necessary to sustain a valid location; and that locators are not held to exactitude or niceties of description in preparing location notices. However, as stated in *Lindley on Mines, 3rd Ed., Sec 381,*

page 903—"the object of any notice at all being to guide the subsequent locator and afford him information as to the extent of the claim of the prior locator; whatever does this fairly and reasonably should be held to be a good notice." Can it be said that the notices of plaintiff do fairly and reasonably guide a subsequent locator and afford him information as to the extent of the claim?

Respondents challenge appellant to find and cite one single case in which descriptions as indefinite and confusing as those set forth in appellant's notices of location have been upheld as sufficient to sustain a valid location.

Appellant cites but few cases to sustain his position. However, none do so. In the case of *Fuller vs Mountain Sculpture*, 6 Utah 2d 385, 314 P2d 842, the factual situation is entirely different than the one in the case at bar. There the placer claims apparently embraced lands confined within a narrow canyon or gulch and which lands embraced topographical abnormalities. Therefore the locator made every studied effort to conform to United States land surveys and to anchor his lines as definitely as possible in order to give notice to the public. He described the ground according to its contours; he described in considerable detail the commencement point upon which the location notice was placed, and described in considerable detail the directions in which the boundaries ran, with a given number of feet between each monument. How different that is from the location no-

tices of appellant, which mentions no sub-division or even a section. It mentions an erroneous township, and makes no mention of whether the acreage is in a square tract or otherwise, and in no manner advises anyone how or where to identify the ground.

This Court, speaking through Justice Crockett, observed that the purpose of the statutory requirements is obviously to mark the locator's claim *as definitely as possible* and give notice thereof to the public. It was held in the Fuller case that because of physical conditions Fullers claim was laid out in a compact and substantially rectangular form and comes as close as possible to conforming to the United States land surveys and true points as is reasonably practicable. Can that be said of plaintiff's claims?

Plaintiff cites as the second case in support of his position *Cranford vs Gibbs*, 123 Utah 447, 269 P2d 870. This case does not sustain plaintiff's position. No mention is made in that case of the descriptions contained in the notices of location and this Court merely ruled upon the sufficiency of the evidence to sustain the trial court's findings. Involved in the Cranford case was an assertion that the original locator had floated his claim several miles from their point of original location to a present and more lucrative location. The question of sufficiency of descriptions in the original notices was not before the Supreme Court. The Cranford case is a classic example

of litigation that could follow from the plaintiff's locations, which are so indefinite in description that plaintiff could float his lines in any direction and miles distant from the present location when and if a more lucrative location could be determined.

Even a casual reading of the cases cited by appellant will convince the reader that the factual situations are entirely different from those in the case at bar, and that these cases have no application to the problem before this Court.

The trial court properly held that plaintiff's notices of location are fatally deficient.

United States Code Annotated, Title 30, Sec. 35, provides:

“Where the lands have been previously surveyed by the United States, the entry in its exterior limits shall conform to the legal subdivisions of the public lands. And where placer claims are upon surveyed lands and conform to the legal subdivisions, no further survey or plat should be required, and all placer mining claims located after the 10th day of May, 1872, shall conform as nearly as practicable with the United States system of public land surveys. * * * ”

It has not been contended by plaintiff that conforming to the legal subdivisions was not practicable, and the notices of location refer to lands that obviously have been previously surveyed by the United States.

Sec. 40-1-2, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, provides as to contents of a notice of location as follows:

“Subdivision 5. If a placer or mill site claim, the number of acres or superficial feet claimed, and such a description of the claim or mill site, located by reference to some natural object or permanent monument, as will identify the claim or mill site.”

The case of *Strickland vs Commercial Mining Co.*, 104 P2d 965 (Ore) is directly in point. It was held:

“It further appears that when this notice was given, the land embraced within the Summit claim had been surveyed by the general government but that the claim, as now laid out, did not conform with the lines of the public survey as required by the act of Congress. The reason assigned by the locator for departing from such direction is that prior locations of other claims and the peculiar conformation of the ground, necessitated the location of the Summit in such a manner * * * * *.” An inspection of the recorded notice imparts no information to interested persons of the definite location of any claim.”

Actually the notice of location in the Strickland case above cited was far more definite than the one in the case at bar.

“The act speaks of making survey for the placer claims conform as nearly as possible with the rectangular subdivisions of the public lands, but under the early practice in the Land Office it was utterly disregarded—so much so as to allow patents to issue in fantastic shape obviously intended to secure the bed of streams or other irregular ad-

vantages. But later, strict compliance was required, the entry being confined to contiguous blocks of not less than ten acres each and a rectangular piece of ground when on unsurveyed land. By a later decision some of the previous holdings were overruled and modified and the ruling now is that where strict conformity is impracticable, it will be sufficient if the ground located by some one or two persons, can be entirely included within a square forty-acre. *Morrison's Mining Rights, 16th Ed, pages 264-5.*"

The case of *Young vs. Papst, 37 P2d 359 (Ore)* illustrates the difference between a totally insufficient notice, and one where it is held that the law does not contemplate that notices should show precise boundaries of placer claims but are sufficient if they contain directions which taken in connection with such boundaries would enable persons of reasonable intelligence to find claims and trace their lines. In this case the notice was held sufficient by a reference to monuments and natural objects. The notice described the ground as follows:

"Beginning at a point 100 feet south of a monument of rock, situated near the junction of Briggs creek and Elkhorn creek, in *Section 24, Township 36 South, Range 9 West*; thence 600 feet in an easterly direction to the SE corner; thence 1320 feet in a northerly direction to the NE corner; thence 660 feet in a westerly direction to the NW corner; thence 1320 feet in a southerly direction to the point of beginning and the SE corner."

The court held the beginning point in the above de-

scription was definite and certain. In the case at bar, no directions are given, no section of land is mentioned, and no statement as to whether the acreage is in a square, or rectangular tract, etc.

It will be observed from *Lindley on Mines, Sec. 448, page 1044, 2nd Vol., 3rd Ed., as follows:* (as to conditions of locations)

- “1. The unit or individual location is 20 acres.
2. That not more than 20 acres may be embraced within one location by an association of persons of which there must be at least eight.
3. That the location, if upon surveyed lands, *must conform as near as practicable to the lines of public survey.*”

Then it is said in *Lindley* (page 1049):

“The land department has held: In this case where the entry of a location described as the W one half of Lot 1”, the same does not conform to the rectangular or legal subdivision of the public land survey of the *section* or township in which said lot is situated. While said Lot 1 is in itself a legal subdivision of said survey the department is not aware of any rule or provision of law whereby the subdivision of said lot into smaller legal subdivisions under the system of public land surveys may be recognized. It is therefore not only necessary that an official survey of the land located and claimed should be made as required for the purpose of proper description and identification in the patent, but such survey appears to be plainly demanded by the statute itself.”

Lindley also makes this observation (page 1049): "Succinctly stated the rules are as follows: The location upon surveyed lands must conform to the subdivisions of the public surveys. Exception to this rule may be permitted where by reason of prior patents or other recognized segregations a tract of vacant land of irregular form is vacant and subject to appropriation."

An early Utah case on the sufficiency of a location notice is that of *Darger vs Le Sieur*, 8 Utah 160, 30 Pac. 363. In that case the notice of location was considerably more definite than the plaintiff's notices in the instant case. The notice in the Darger case described the claim as follows:

"1500 feet in length on this ledge * * * and 300 feet on each side of the center of location and as running 300 feet and west 1200 feet from monument, the ledge being situated up near the head of the right-hand fork of what is known as Tie Canyon and about 5 miles from the Denver and Rio Grande Railroad tracks in Utah County, Utah."

The court held such a notice to be fatally defective and that valid locations could not be claimed under such a notice.

Brown vs Loran 16 Pac 661 (*Ida*) states:

"From these authorities (and many are cited) it is evident that it has become the settled law of the land that Sec. 2324 Rev. St. US must be complied with, to-wit: That all records of mining claims shall contain such a description of the claim located by reference to some natural permanent

monument as will identify the claim. In this case the notice stated the claim was located 'on the north side of Willow Creek'. This portion of the reference is, of course, so indefinite and uncertain that it amounts to no reference at all when taken alone. It is indefinite as the reference of the Mary Belle claim in *Darger vs La Sieur*, 8 Utah 160, 30 Pac 363, which described the claim situated about five miles from the D. & R. G. track, near the head of the right-hand fork of what is known as Tie Canyon."

In every case we have been able to find, and particularly the Utah cases, where a notice was held sufficient as to description and reference to a natural object or permanent monument, the description set forth in the notice of location was far more definite than the plaintiff's notices.

For instance, see *Wells vs. Davis*, 62 Pac 3, 22 Utah 322. *Wilson vs. Triumph Consolidated Min. Co.*, 56 Pac 300, 19 Utah 66. *Bonanza Consolidated Min. Co. vs. Golden Head Min. Co.*, 80 Pac. 736, 29 Utah 159.

POINT II

KNOWLEDGE THAT A PERSON IS IN
POSSESSION OF GROUND WITHOUT A
COMPLIANCE OF THE LAW CONFERS
NO RIGHT AGAINST A SUBSEQUENT
LOCATOR

In his brief, appellant squints at the fact that his

notices of location should be upheld as sufficient, and he is entitled to prevail over defendants, merely because the subsequent locator, Miller, knew that plaintiff was in possession of ground included in the Miller locations. It may be contended in the oral argument presented to this Court that knowledge of possession of ground by one claiming under a notice of location, in effect cures any and all deficiencies, and that a subsequent locator cannot successfully contend that the location is fatally defective. Numerous cases hold that minor deficiencies and irregularities cannot be relied on by one having knowledge of possession by a prior locator, this on the theory that such subsequent locator has not been misled and cannot claim uncertainty by determining what ground is claimed under the notice. Such is not the situation in this case where the notices are clearly and fatally defective by failure to show any adequate descriptions.

Possession alone, confers no right as against a subsequent location, and the fact that a subsequent locator is aware of such possession does not change the rule.

To set the matter at rest we present the following authorities:

The very early case of Hopkins and others vs Noyes and others, 2 Pac. 280 (Mont) which lays down the rule followed consistently since then. It is here stated.

“Possession of a mining claim without compli-

ance with the law and the rules of the mining district, gives no valid title or right of possession and is valueless against a location made and sustained in compliance with the law. In other words, possession without a location carries no title. Possessory titles do not live upon possession alone. They must be supported by proof, a compliance with the law that gives the right to and sustains the possession."

The case of *Sweet vs Webber*, 4 Pac 752 (Colo). provides:

"The provisions of Sec. 2324 of the Revised Statutes requiring the location of a mining claim to be distinctly marked on the ground so that its boundaries may be readily traced, and a record of the claim to be made in manner set forth, are equally applicable to placer and lode locations. In the language of Chief Justice Waite in *Belk vs. Meagher*, 104 U.S. 284, it is said: 'The right to possession comes only from a valid location; consequently, if there is no location, there can be no possession under it. Location does not necessarily follow from possession, but possession from location. A location is not made by taking possession alone.'"

Copper Globe Min. Co. vs Allman, 23 Utah 410, 64 Pac. 1019, holds:

"A mining location is not perfected until all of the essential statutory requirements are performed. A locator of a mining claim only acquires exclusive right to the possession of the claim when all of the necessary requirements of a location are observed; and, if he neglects to perform any necessary requirements within the time prescribed by statute

his attempted location is of no avail as against an intervening location peaceably and regularly made and covering the same ground, altho he shall have performed the neglected requirements after the inception of the second location."

See also Wilson vs Triumph Con. Mng. Co. 19 Utah 66, 56 Pac 300; *Oliver vs. Berg, et al.*, 58 P2d 245, at page 256 (*Ore*) holds:

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